
 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 276142 

Please ask for Jonathan Lindop 
Email: 

jonathan.lindop@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives Committee 
 
Monday, 3 December 2018 
10.30 am 

County Record Office, Stafford 

 
John Tradewell 

Director of Strategy, Governance and Change 
23 November 2018 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
1. Apologies  
 
2. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16  
 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2018 (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
4. Predicted Outturn 2018/19 (Pages 9 - 16) 
 
Joint report of the Deputy Chief Exectuive and Director for Families and Communities 
(Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Housing and Community Services (Stoke-
on-Trent City Council) 
 
5. Review of Fees and Charges (Pages 17 - 26) 
 
Joint report of the Deputy Chief Exectuive and Director for Families and Communities 
(Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Housing and Community Services (Stoke-
on-Trent City Council) 
 
6. Review of Joint Agreement (Pages 27 - 66) 
 
Joint report of the Deputy Chief Exectuive and Director for Families and Communities 
(Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Housing and Community Services (Stoke-
on-Trent City Council) 
 
7. Date of next meeting - Thursday 7 February 2019 at 10.30 am, City Central 

Library, Hanley  
 
8. Exclusion of the public  
 
The Chairman to move:- 
 



“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business which 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 
 

 
PART TWO 
(All reports in this section are on pink paper) 
 
 
9. Staffordshire History Centre Project (Pages 67 - 80) 
 
(exemption paragraph 3) 
 
Exempt joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 
Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Housing and Community 
Services (Stoke-on-Trent City Council)   
 
 
 

Membership 
 

Gill Heath 
Anthony Munday 
 

Gill Burnett 
 

 
Note for Members of the Press and Public 
 
Filming of Meetings 
 
The Open (public) section of this meeting may be filmed for live or later broadcasting or 
other use, and, if you are at the meeting, you may be filmed, and are deemed to have 
agreed to being filmed and to the use of the recording for broadcast and/or other 
purposes. 
 
Recording by Press and Public 
 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is permitted 
from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the chairman, disrupt 
the meeting.  
 



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives Committee 
meeting held on 28 June 2018 

 
Present: Mike Davies (Invitee/Observer), Janine Bridges (Substitute) and 
Gill Heath 

 
Apologies for absence:  Anthony Munday and Gill Burnett 
 
PART ONE 
 
48. Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That Mr. A. Munday be appointed as Chairman for the ensuing year 
until the next Annual Meeting in June 2019. 
 
(b) That Mrs. G. Heath be appointed as Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year until the 
next Annual Meeting in 2019.  
 
49. Declarations of Interest in accordance with Standing Order 16 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
50. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2018 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2018 be confirmed and 
signed by the Chairman. 
 
51. Joint Archives Services: Annual Report 2017/18 
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Resources – 
Assistant Chief Executive (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) giving details of the 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive Service: Annual Report 2017/18 (schedule 1 
to the signed minutes) which had been produced in accordance with the Joint 
Agreement. 
 
The Annual report provided an account and review of the work and performance of the 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive Service for the financial year 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2018. 
 
This was the third year in the current three-year planning cycle for the service. The 
report highlighted some significant achievements towards meeting the overall strategic 
objectives of the service within the current Forward Plan 2015-2018 including:- (i) 
developing an active partnership approach; (ii) developing resilience and sustainability; 
(iii) reaching and engaging with a wide range of people and building new audiences; (iv) 
sharing knowledge across the UK and (v) increasing online presence and remote 
access. 
 
Members noted that it had been a very productive year with the most noticeable 
successes including (i) the development of the Heritage Lottery Funded (HLF) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

Staffordshire History Centre; (ii) the achievement of Archive Accreditation in July 2017; 
(iii) the continued work on funded cataloguing projects and; (iv) the smooth transfer of 
collections from the former Lichfield Record Office. However, some dips in performance 
had occurred owing to the need to prioritise a heavy workload. 
 
With regard to (i) above, fourteen events and activities had been held across 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent to consult with people about the project, feedback from 
which had been used to influence the Activity Plan/work undertaken by Project Partners. 
In addition a Conservation Management Plan had been prepared to Royal Institute of 
British Architects Stage 3 standard, setting out how collections were to be managed, 
interpreted, explained and conserved in the new Centre. Whilst the project had not been 
without its difficulties the HLF had confirmed that it had passed their mid-stage review 
and an application for further funding was submitted by the Authorities in June 2018. 
 
With regard to (ii) above, presentation of the award took place in November 2017 by Val 
Johnson of the National Archive. At the ceremony,  she informed delegates that only 
3.5% of eligible services had so far been successful in gaining accreditation. 
 
With regard to (iii) above, good progress had been made in (i) reducing the backlog of 
collections awaiting cataloguing and; (ii) processing new collections, owing to the 
success of the service in obtaining grant aid from external sources. Grants had been 
received from the National Archive for the Royal Doulton element of the Minton Archive 
and Welcome Foundation for the Public Health Records project.   
 
An audit of the Heritage and Archive Service was completed by Staffordshire County 
Council’s Internal Audit Service in May 2017. The Audit examined financial management 
arrangements, processes and risk management. As a result a recommendation for the 
production of a risk register covering (i) physical risks to collections; (ii) risks to digital 
collection; (iii) risks to staff, members of the public and volunteers within the service; (iv) 
risks to operation of the public service and; (v) risks to forward planning for the service 
for review by the Joint Committee on an annual basis was made. Accordingly, a 
Register had been produced and was appended to the report for Members’ information. 
The highest risk highlighted was the digital preservation of collections with a score of 20 
out of 25.     
 
During the discussion which ensued Members paid tribute to the work of the service for 
their significant achievements over the year notwithstanding their heavy workload. They 
were particular pleased to learn of (i) the 99% customer satisfaction rating gained in a 
recent local survey; (ii) the attainment of Archive Service Accreditation; (iii) the success 
of the Volunteer scheme and; (iv) progress in the development of the Staffordshire 
History Centre project. 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

 
The Member representative from Stoke-on-Trent City Council expressed her view that 
the service should seek to promote their achievements not least as an example of 
effective partnership working between Authorities. She went onto to enquire about the 
“Kitchen Goes to War” project and “Weeping Window” at Middleport Pottery as part of 
the commemoration of the Great War. In reply the Commissioner for Culture and 
Communities explained that Kitchen Goes to War had been devised by the County 
Council with support from the Heritage Lottery Fund for use in Staffordshire Schools. 
The project focused on rationing and its impact on domestic life and she undertook to 
liaise with relevant officers regarding inclusion of schools in the City Council’s area in 
the initiative. With regard to the Weeping Window, the Director referred to the “Great 
War Staffordshire” Website at www.staffordshiregreatwar.com which sought to capture 
and publicise details of all local events being held to commemorate the centenary of the 
First World War. She undertook to ensure that Weeping Window had been included. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the report be received and the achievements of the Staffordshire 
and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archive Service be noted. 
 
(b) That the draft Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive Service Annual Report 2017 
-2018 as set out in Appendix 2 to the report be approved for publication. 
 
(b) That the Risk Register for Joint Archive Service as set out in Appendix 3 to the report 
be approved.         
 
52. Joint Archives Service: Revenue Outturn 2017/18 
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Director of Finance and Resources and 
the City Director Resources – Assistant Chief Executive setting out (i) the final outturn 
for the Joint Archive Service for 2017/18 and (ii) the predicted outturn for 2018/19 
(Scheduled 2 to the signed minutes). 
 
The outturn indicated that the service had a final net revenue outturn of £702,461 
compared to an approved budget of £746,500 which gave an overall underspend of 
£44,039. The underspend had occurred owing to (i) managed staff savings (£34,550) 
and; (ii) further savings on training, transport and supplies and service (£15,930) both of 
which had offset an under recovery of income (£5,774). This underspend was 
transferred to the General Reserve at the end of the financial year. 
 
The balance in the General Reserve was £45,451 (net of funding commitments) and the 
Archive Acquisition Reserve was £57,542. 
 
With regard to 2018/19, the net revenue budget was £864,070 which represented an 
increase of £117,570 compared to 2017/18. Current spend as at 20 June 2018 was 
£151,141 which represented £17.5% of the total figure.  

Page 3

http://www.staffordshiregreatwar.com/


 

- 4 - 
 

 
At their meeting on 3 April 2018 the Joint Committee agreed that a review be 
undertaken of the Joint Agreement to revise the way the budget was set annually having 
regard to the need for both Authorities to make savings and the difficulty which had 
been experienced in achieving the agreed budget ratio of 77.4% (Staffordshire) to 
22.6% (Stoke-on-Trent). Members noted that the outcome of the review was intended to 
be reported to their next meeting. 
 
During his presentation of the report the Director of Finance and Resources referred to 
paragraph 6 and said that the final net revenue outturn was set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report rather than ‘Appendix 2’ as stated. 
 
In reply to a request for clarification from the Member representative of the City Council, 
the Director of Finance and Resources confirmed that the underspend achieved during 
the year was to be retained by the service for future use, re-iterating that the balance 
had already been transferred to the General Reserve.  
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the report be received an noted. 
 
(b) That the outcome of the review of the Joint Archives Agreement budget setting 
methodology be reported to their meeting currently scheduled for 15 November 2018.                
 
53. Staffordshire History Centre Project Update 
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Resources – 
Assistant Chief Executive (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) updating them on progress with 
regard to the Staffordshire History Centre Project (Schedule 3 to the signed minutes). 
 
The Archive and Heritage Service had submitted a bid to the Heritage Lottery Fund 
(HLF) for funding towards the development of a Staffordshire History Centre comprising 
(i) accommodation for records; (ii) a new community exhibition space; (iii) modern 
search rooms and strong rooms to provide storage for an additional 25 years of future 
collections. 
 
Following consideration by the HLF, a grant of £333,400 was awarded for Phase 1 - the 
Development Phase of the Project in June 2016 with a further £4m being earmarked for 
Phase 2 – the Implementation Phase, subject to a successful application. Members 
learned that the County Council were notified on 10 April 2018 that they had passed 
their mid stage review and that the Phase 2 application had been submitted on 14 June 
2018. It was anticipated that the outcome of the application would be known in 
September 2018 ie following consideration by the HLF Board. 
 
The total cost of the project was £5.7m, of which 69% was to be met by the HLF. The 
remaining 31% amounting to £1.8m was the responsibility of the project partnership and 
to date £717,877 had been secured through (i) organisational funding from Staffordshire 
County Council and the William Salt Library; (ii) private donations; (iii) donations from 
Friends groups and (iv) grants from Trusts and Charities. An additional sum of £746,000 
had also been secured by planned volunteer working during the project. 
 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

Therefore, the current shortfall in funding amounted to £159,000 and would be met 
through further applications for grant aid and fundraising by Friends Groups. The County 
Council had agreed to underwrite any shortfall which might occur as necessary 
reassurance to the HLF. 
 
Subject to the outcome of the Stage 2 grant application, construction of the new 
Staffordshire History Centre would commence in the summer 2019 and be completed in 
the following year.     
 
RESOLVED - That the report be received and noted. 
 
54. Volunteers in the Archive and Heritage Service 
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Resources – 
Assistant Chief Executive (Stoke-on-Trent City Council) highlighting the work which had 
been undertaken by volunteers in support of the Archive and Heritage Service 
(Schedule 4 to the signed minutes). 
 
Members were informed of the key pieces of work undertaken by volunteers in support 
of the Archive and Heritage Service which included cataloguing, indexing and 
conserving of collections. The number of hours contributed by volunteers had increased 
from 6,266 in 2013/14 to 8,571 in 2017/18. This represented an in-kind value of 
£56,000. Whilst their roles had already expanded over this period, further opportunities 
were to become available to them through the development of the Staffordshire History 
Centre project.  
 
Workshops held in May 2017 had revealed that many volunteers:- 
 

 Enjoyed working with academic partners; 
 

 Wished to receive more training but were not interested in obtaining a formal 
qualification;  

 

 Would like more interaction with staff; 
 

 Had strong traditional heritage skills eg archive cataloguing, transcribing and 
family history; 

 

 Had good customer care skills; 
 

 Enjoyed working with other volunteers; 
 

 Enjoyed working with schools and/or young people. 
 
However, very few volunteers currently had skills in social/digital media, working with 
families, and people with dementia or other special needs. A training programme had 
therefore been developed which included modules on (i) practical skills; (ii) collections 
management; (iii) research and conservation; (iv) customer care and working with 
people with special needs.  

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

 
Volunteer projects in Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire had been included as examples 
of best practice in the National Archives’ publication ‘Guidance for Volunteer 
Cataloguing in Archives’. The document highlighted projects which involved 
knowledgeable volunteers, trained and guided by professional staff working together to 
produce high quality catalogues.  
 
Building on the success of the volunteer cataloguing projects an innovative training 
scheme had been trialled in order to train depositors to provide more information about 
their own collections prior to donation. The trial involved The Kinver Edge Committee 
(which managed the Rock Houses from 1917 onwards) who had been trained and 
provided with guidance on how to sort, weed, arrange and catalogue 140 files of 
correspondence, plans minutes and reports. It was hoped that this model could be built 
on and rolled out to other depositors according to their knowledge, experience an 
interest etc. 
 
During the discussion which ensued Members paid tribute to the many volunteers for 
their valuable contribution in supporting the work of the service.   
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the report be received and noted. 
 
(b) That the valuable contribution to the work of Archive and Heritage Service made by 
volunteers be acknowledged. 
 
(c) That a review of the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive and Heritage Service 
Volunteer Policy be undertaken and a report on the outcome be brought to their next 
meeting in November 2018 for consideration.    
                  
55. Loans Policy 
 
The Committee considered a Joint report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Families and Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Resources – 
Assistant Chief Executive setting out a proposed new Loans Policy (inward and 
outward) for adoption by the Service as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
Both the Archive and Museum service were both accredited services and as such 
worked to a set of policies approved by their respective governing bodies ie Archives 
and Records Associations’ Code of Ethics (2016) and Museums Associations’ Code of 
Ethics 2015 respectively. The purpose of these policies was to set out the guiding 
principles and sector standards for dealing with loans so that there was a consistent 
approach across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent.  
 
The Conservation Management Plan for the Staffordshire History Centre project 
included a requirement to review the current policies and align them where possible with 
the aim of making collections more accessible to a variety of organisations and 
communities. In addition, the centre was to have its own exhibition space which would 
be available to receive items on loan from other organisations      

Page 6



 

- 7 - 
 

 
During the discussion which ensued an officer representative of the City Council 
highlighted that the Condition of Loan Agreement relating to the Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent Archive Service as set out in the Appendix should also include a similar 
paragraph on Insurance as set out in the Conditions of Loan Agreement for the County 
Museum Service. In reply the Deputy Chief Executive undertook to ensure that the 
necessary amendments were made to the finalised documentation. 
 
RESOLVED - (a) That the report be received and noted. 
 
(b) That the draft Staffordshire Archives and Loans Policy as set out in Appendix 2 to 
the report be approved for implementation. 
 
(c) That the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Families and Communities be 
authorised to make any further minor amendments to the Policy as required, prior to 
implementation.    
 
56. Date of next meeting - Thursday 15 November 2018 at 10.30 am, 
Staffordshire County Record Office, Stafford 
 
RESOLVED – That the date of the next meeting be noted.  
          
 
 
     
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

Page 7





 

Local Member 
Interest 

Nil 

 
STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE ON TRENT JOINT ARCHIVES 

COMMITTEE 

 
3rd December 2018 

 
JOINT ARCHIVE SERVICE – PREDICTED OUTTURN 2018/19  

 
Recommendation(s) 
  
1. That the report updates the Joint Archive Committee (JAC) on the current 

2018/19 net budget position. 
 

2. That the Joint Committee approve the ‘ear marking’ of £5,000 from the 
General Reserve to fund the purchasing of shelving and furniture for the 
new Lichfield History Access Point situated in the relocated Lichfield 
Library based at St Mary’s Church, Lichfield. 
 

3. That the report updates the Joint Committee on the agreed review of the 
current Joint Archives Agreement (JAA) budget setting methodology.  
 

 
Joint report of the Director of Finance & Resources and the Director of 
Housing and Community Services  

 
Reasons for Recommendations 
 
4. The Joint Archive Service net revenue outturn is currently estimated as a 

£17,041 underspend in the 2018/19 financial year. This underspend, if 
realised, will be transferred to the General Reserve at the year end. 
 

5. The General Reserve currently holds a significant balance of £311,988 
following return of previously approved HLF Stage 2 bid funding 
commitment back to the Reserve following the recent unsuccessful round 
2 HLF bid for the Staffordshire History Centre (SHC). The Archive 
Acquisition Reserve continues to remain unchanged with a current 
balance of £57,542. 

 
Net Revenue Outturn 2018-19 
 
6. The Joint Archives Committee previously approved the 2018/19 Joint 

Agreement net revenue budget of £864,070 at the 3rd April 2018 Joint 
Committee. 

 
7. To date, the Joint Archive’s net spend is currently £462,336 or 53.5% of 

the net revenue budget (as at 20th November 2018) and is currently 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



anticipated to underspend by £17,041 by the year end. Of this forecast 
underspend, a further assessment of net spend indicates that at the year 
end, managed staff vacancy savings of £29,834 has successfully offset 
overspends of £6,916 on both travel and supplies & services costs and an 
anticipated under-recovery of income (predominantly from sales and 
miscellaneous income) of £5,877. 

 
8. The net revenue outturn spend for the Service is set out in Appendix 2. 

This underspend, when realised, will be transferred to the JAC’s General 
Reserve at the end of the financial year. 

 
Reserves 

 
9. There are currently two Reserves held by the Joint Archive Service, these 

being the General Reserve and the Archive Acquisition Reserve. The 
current balances on these two Reserves are set out in Appendix 3. 
 

10. The General Reserve currently holds ‘a healthy balance’ of £311,988 
following: 

 
- the receipt of £153,079 in New Burdens Funding to invest in new 
archive storage capacity; 
- a net funding contribution of -£22,969 to the SHC project which 
replaces the previously approved £100,000 HLF bid funding commitment 
that is no longer required following the unsuccessful Stage 2 HLF bid; 
- the inclusion of Stoke on Trent City Council’s previous Archive Non-
Agreement Reserve totalling £34,945 taking the City Council’s balance up 
to £63,342, which is then net of the planned -£30,000 Solon Room funding 
commitment previously approved by the JAC in April 2018. 

 
11. Given the healthy balance on the General Reserve, the JAC is requested 

to approve the ‘ear marking’ of £5,000 from the General Reserve to fund 
the purchasing of shelving and furniture for the new Lichfield History 
Access Point which is situated in the newly relocated Lichfield Library 
based at St Mary’s Church in Lichfield City Centre. 

 
12. The Archive Acquisition Reserve, which enables the JAC to purchase local 

collections for the benefit of archives users in both the City and the 
County, currently holds a balance of £57,542 which has remained 
unchanged for several years. 

 
A Review of the Joint Archives Agreement Budget Setting Methodology 

 
13. At the April 2018 JAC, it was agreed by Members that a review be 

undertaken of the current Joint Archive Agreement (JAA) to revise the 
way the annual budget is set and to report its recommendations back to 
the next Joint Committee in November 2018. 
 

14. A separate paper, item 6 on today’s agenda, will therefore update the JAC 
on the progress made to date on the proposed review of the annual 

Page 10



Archive budget setting methodology and to seek approval to continue 
working with both legal teams in the County and the City to finalise the 
JAA before the end of the financial year. 

 
Appendix 1 
 
Equalities implications: 
 
No significant implications. 
 
Legal implications: 
 
The Joint Archive Agreement budget is subject to an Internal Audit, on an ad 
hoc basis, following the cessation of the annual Small Bodies Audit return. 
Resource and Value for money implications: 
 
The Joint Agreement budget is monitored regularly throughout the year. 
Risk Implications: 
 
No significant implications. 
 
Climate Change Implications: 
 
No significant implications. 
 
Health Impact Assessment screening: 
 
No significant implications. 
 
Report author: 
 
Author’s Name: John Broad, Senior Finance Business Partner 
Telephone No: (01785) 854861 
Room Number: Staffordshire Place 2 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
Joint and other Archive Services 2018/19 Budget file. 
 

Page 11





Joint Archives Service Appendix 2

Predicted Outturn Position 2018-2019

Current Actual Predicted Current Actual Predicted Current Actual Predicted Current Actual Predicted
Budget Expenditure Outturn Budget Expenditure Outturn Budget Expenditure Outturn Budget Expenditure Outturn

@ Oct-2018 @ Oct-2018 @ Oct-2018 @ Oct-2018
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Employees 376,060 189,216 377,716 351,710 163,236 327,520 126,500 69,218 119,200 854,270 421,669 824,436
Training 240 0 100 0 0 0 900 41 900 1,140 41 1,000
Transport 800 1,104 2,093 180 2,104 5,230 300 0 300 1,280 3,209 7,623
Supplies & Services 3,620 917 4,324 18,590 5,369 18,599 19,200 ** 36,560 19,200 41,410 42,846 42,123

Total Expenditure 380,720 191,237 384,233 370,480 170,709 351,349 146,900 105,819 139,600 898,100 467,765 875,182

Income

Grants & Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 72 200 200 72 200
Sales 0 0 0 10,140 3,678 6,755 400 116 400 10,540 3,794 7,155
Fees & Charges 0 0 0 14,350 -1,401 14,357 1,900 1,551 1,900 16,250 150 16,257
Miscellaneous 3,160 0 2,100 3,880 1,424 2,441 0 -11 0 7,040 1,413 4,541

Total Income 3,160 0 2,100 28,370 3,701 23,553 2,500 1,728 2,500 34,030 5,429 28,153

Net Expenditure 377,560 191,237 382,133 342,110 167,008 327,796 144,400 104,091 137,100 864,070 462,336 847,029

Predicted Underspend -17,041 

** Includes £23,790 to be funded from Reserve at year-end

Total for ServiceStaffordshire County Council Sites and 
Public Services

Core Services Stoke-on-Trenty City Council Sites and 
Public Services

P
age 13





Staffordshire Stoke on Trent Total
County Council City Council

£ £ £

General Reserve

Balance brought forward 1 April 2018 125,567 ** 63,342 188,909

2018/2019 Transactions
The National Archive - New Burdens Funding 153,079 153,079
Contribution to SHC Project - HLF Bid -22,969

Future Commitments

Contribution to Solon Rooms Minor Capital Works 0 -30,000 -30,000

Balance Available (as at 31 March 2019) 255,676 33,342 311,988

Notes:

Acquisition Reserve

Balance brought forward 1 April 2018 57,542 0 57,542

2018/2019 Transactions
0 0 0

Balance Available (as at 31 March 2019) 57,542 0 57,542

Joint Archives Reserves

Appendix 3

Page 15





Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archive Committee 
3 December 2018 

 
 
 

Review of Fees and Charges  
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
1. That the fees and charges proposed in Appendix two to this report be 
approved for introduction by the Joint Archive Service from April 2019. 
 
2. Report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and 
Communities (Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Housing 
and Community Services (Stoke on Trent City Council) 
 

Reasons for Recommendations 
3. The Archive Service fees and charges have been reviewed on an annual 
basis for a number of years to allow the Service to adapt its services 
according to demand and cost of provision. The proposed fees and charges 
are recommended for approval as they represent a fair and reasonable 
increase. 
 
Background 
4. The Archive Service generates income from the following sources: a range 
of copying services; the sale of photographic permits; research, transcription 
and certification services; sales of publications; donations; and fees for talks 
by and group visits to the Archive Service. In addition from 2014 the Archive 
Service has benefitted from income from its partnership with a commercial 
provider to make key archive collections available online. 
 
5. Last year the Committee reviewed the charge for research and the charges 
which are based on it, including the staff facilitation fee.  This year, following 
the pattern established over recent years, it is proposed to leave the 
Research Fee and associated fees unchanged, and to review the charges for 
supplying copies of documents in various ways that we are able to do 
(photocopying, digital copying and photography) and the fees associated with 
talks, visits and permissions to publish.  
 
6.  The changes proposed in this report continue to aim for a simplified 
structure. This reflects the fact that as technology has developed the 
justification for differential treatment of microfilm copies, photocopies and 
simple digital scans using multifunctional devices has disappeared.   
 
7. We propose maintaining a differential between copies ordered in the 
reading room and copies ordered by post.  This reflects the staff time that can 
be involved in locating, retrieving, and checking that the material requested is 
physically suitable for copying.  This differential is applied to the first copy, 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



remaining copies being charged at the rate applied to copies requested in the 
reading room. 
 
8. The Photographic permit is well used by our customers and offers the 
opportunity to have images of high quality on their own devices for instant 
access. The photographic permit represents a saving on orders of several 
copies and it is appropriate for it to increase in proportion to copying fees. 
This helps to maintain income for the Service whilst offering flexibility to our 
customers.  The annual permit charge has been held in order to make it a 
more attractive purchase, as it currently attracts low take up. 
 
9. The structure of charges proposed for publication fees aims to support the 
local and academic research community whilst ensuring commercial providers 
bear cost proportionate to the time involved in clearing rights on their behalf. 
The time involved in preparing rights agreements for them and to the larger 
audiences they aim to reach can be time consuming as involves contacting 
copyright owners. 
 
10. It is proposed to abolish the differential item charge for e-book rights and 
instead impose a flat rate charge encompassing all items to be used in a 
particular publication. 
 
11. The baseline charge for talks and visits has been held r to remain 
affordable for the local groups who are the potential users of this service. 
However there are increases proposed where the Service faces increased or 
significant costs, most notably in the provision of visits which include the time 
of conservation staff and additional staff time to provide security on 
strongroom tours.  
 
 
 
Appendix 1 
Equalities implications: In reviewing its fees the Archive Service has 
continued to maintain its lower research fee for people with disabilities.  
 
Legal implications: The content of this report complies with the joint 
agreement governing the work of the Joint Archive Service.  
 
Resource and Value for money implications: Overall the Joint Archive 
Service has income targets of £34,030 which breaks down to £2,500 for the 
City service and £31,530 for the County service. 
 
Risk implications: At this point in the year income is under target for. Officers 
are managing spend within budgets to offset under recovery of income.  
 
Climate Change implications: No significant implications.  
 
Health Impact Assessment screening: No significant implications. 
 
 

Page 18



APPENDIX 2 
STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE- ON- TRENT ARCHIVE SERVICE 

 
REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES, 2018/2019  -attached to report 

 
Author’s Name: Chris Latimer, City Archivist, Stoke-on-Trent 
 
Telephone No: (01782) 238403 
 
Location: City Central Library, Bethesda Street, Hanley, Stoke-on-Trent  
 
List of Background Papers  
 

Page 19





APPENDIX 2 
STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE- ON- TRENT ARCHIVE SERVICE 

 
REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES, 2019/2020 

 
The current fees and charges and proposed changes are set out below.  The proposed new charges would apply from 1 April 2018.  

FEE/CHARGE CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS 

RESEARCH FEES 

1. Research Fee 
 

     Scope: looking for information in the sources 
(archival, printed or published online) available to the 
Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Archive Service . 
Providing information on our holdings from indexes or 
catalogues is not chargeable 
Basis: Research orders will be charged in half hour 
blocks, with a minimum of half an hour and a 
maximum of four hours.  
 
People with disabilities which prevent them from 
accessing the sources in the reading rooms of the 
Joint Archive Service will be charged at two-thirds of 
the standard rate. 
 
1.1 Quick Research Fee 
Scope: looking for a single entry, article or item of 
information in a source on the basis of information 
provided by the enquirer which should lead directly to 
the entry or item desired and the provision of a single 
photocopy or transcription if found. This fee applies 
for the transcription of documents identified in the 
Staffordshire Name index. If a copy is requested and 
the source cannot be photocopied or transcribed 
within 15 minutes, the request will attract either the 
Staff Facilitation Fee or the Staff Photography Fee, 
not the QRF. 
Basis: One quarter of the Research Fee 
People with disabilities which prevent them from 
accessing the sources in the reading rooms of the 
Joint Archive Service will be charged at two-thirds of 
the standard rate. 

 
 
£30 (£25 + £5 VAT) 
per hour to include the cost 
of up to 4 copies and 
UK/EU postage 
Minimum charge- £15-00 
(£12.50 +£2.50 VAT) to 
include the cost of 2 copies 
and UK postage 
 
£20 per hour to include the 
cost of up to 4 copies and 
UK postage for people with 
disabilities. 
 
 
£7.50 (£6.25 + £1.25 VAT) 
First class postage charged 
additionally.  
£5 for people with 
disabilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EU 
orders 
no 
change 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Non-EU 
orders: 
no 
change 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This fee has been held having been increased last 
year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This fee has been held having been increased last 
year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 21



FEE/CHARGE CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS 

1.2 Hospital records search fee 
This fee is based on the standard photography charge 
and quick search fee using indexes to locate entries 
in hospital records.  Digital images of the records are 
included in the fee. 
 

 
 
£37.50 
(£31.25 + £6.25 VAT)  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
This fee has been held having been increased last 
year 
 

2. Staff Facilitation Fee 
Scope: Staff time used to make a customer request 
for service possible, including but not restricted to  

 supervising documents outside the research 
room during professional photography, 
transporting documents to an external office 
for microfilming, conservation or other purpose 

 certifying the content of archives held within 
the service for use in religious legal or other 
proceedings 

 preparing or conserving documents in order 
that a customer order can be carried out 

 transcribing or translating documents in 
private hands 

 
Basis: The fee will always be equal to the Research 
Fee. 
 
 
 

£30.00 per hour  As part of fulfilling customer orders or requests, 
from time to time archive service staff may need to 
carry out ancillary or additional tasks in order to 
make the chargeable request possible. Examples 
would include, conserving or stabilising documents 
prior to photography, supervising documents in 
areas outside the search room in order that 
professional photography may be done, 
accompanying documents outside the service’s 
premises for third party purposes. The provision of 
a certified copy of a register entry or an electoral 
register entry may be requested from the Archive 
Service for use by the customer in religious or legal 
proceedings. Staff’s professional skills such as 
palaeography are sometimes requested by 
customers for single documents in private hands. In 
all these cases the archive service has routinely 
made a charge based on the hourly rate for 
research. This fee provides a defined fee for all 
work for the public not covered elsewhere in this 
schedule 

COPYING CHARGES 
 

3. Photocopies and microform printouts 
identified and ordered in reading rooms  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75p (62p+13p VAT) 
per copy A4/A3 
(B&W) 
 
 
£1.50 per copy A4/A3 
colour ( £1.25 + 25p 
VAT) 
 
 
 

£1.00 (83p 
+17p VAT) 
 
 
 
£2.00 (£1.67 
+33p VAT) 

£1.00 
 
 
 
 
£2.00 

These charges were last increased in 2017. 

P
age 22



FEE/CHARGE CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS 

 

4. Photocopies and microform printouts ordered 
remotely 

First copy, incl. UK 
postage and packing  
 £4-00 
(£3.33 + £0.67 VAT) 
 
First class postage 
charged additionally. 
 
Successive copies on 
same order-  
1-50(£1.25 + £0.25 
VAT) 
 
Non EU postage 
charged at current 
rates 
 

EU orders: 
  
 
£5.00 (£4.17 
+83p VAT) 
 
Successive 
copies on 
same order 
(B&W) £1.00 
(83p +17p 
VAT) 
 
(Colour) 
£2.00 (£1.67 
+33p VAT) 
 

Non EU 
orders: 
 
£5.00 
 
 
 
 
 
£1.00 
 
 
 
 
£2.00 

 
 
 
Retrieving, identifying and assessing the suitability 
for copying of items requested remotely add 
significantly to staff time in fulfilling such orders and 
the initial charge differential from the standard price 
is in place to reflect this. The cost of successive 
copies has been reduced to align with the charge 
made in the reading room.  Remote copies are 
usually supplied electronically 
  

5. Microform print outs : self service in   
                                             reading rooms 
     

75p (62p+13p VAT) 
self service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Delete as separate 
charge 

In 2017 these charges were aligned with the 
charges for photocopies. It is not envisaged that 
the charges will diverge and therefore they will no 
longer be set separately 

6. Microform print-outs by post £4-00 
(£3.33 + £0.67 VAT) 
 
First class postage 
charged additionally. 
Successive copies on 
same order-  
1-50 
(£1.25 + £0.25 VAT) 

Delete as separate 
charge 

In 2017 these charges were aligned with the 
charges for photocopies. It is not envisaged that 
the charges will diverge and therefore they will no 
longer be set separately 

P
age 23



FEE/CHARGE CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS 

 per copy  
Non EU postage 
charged additionally 

7. Computer print outs on site 
 

20p (Staffordshire) 
10p (Stoke) 

No change This charge is held in line with Library Service fees 
in the County and the City and will vary in line with 
any changes made by the respective Library 
Services. 
 

8. In-house Photography Charges £30 per hour fee for 
photography including 
prints 
(£25 + £5-00 VAT) 
 
 
The Staff Facilitation 
Fee may apply if 
conservation or 
preparation work is 
required in advance of 
the photographer 
carrying out the work. 
 

EU 
customers 
 

Non EU 
customer
s 
 
 

This fee has been held having been increased last 
year. The provision of the images to the customer 
by digital download, by DVD or by print- out on 
ordinary photocopier paper,  in person or by post 
will be free. Photographic prints will not be provided 
by the Archive Service 
 

9. Permit Fees for Use of Digital Camera £7-50 daily fee 
£50-00 annual fee 
 
 
 
 
 

£8.00 
No change 
 

The use of digital cameras allows researchers to 
obtain copies and the fee is increased to maintain a 
differential with the photocopy charge. The take up 
of the annual permit is low, and the charge has 
been held to increase the benefit gained over 
purchase of multiple day permits.   
 

P
age 24



FEE/CHARGE CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS 

10. Publication fees for the reproduction of 
documents in:  exhibitions, hard copy or 
online publications or media broadcasting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sliding scale of 
charges according to 
the nature of the 
publication, print run 
or broadcast 
 
Community /academic 
journal publication/ 
website/ exhibition/ 
DVD: £10-00 for first 
item, plus £5-00 for 
each additional item 
 
Commercial 
publication: hard 
copy/exhibition/ 
website:  
£45-00 for first item, 
plus £25-00 for each 
additional item 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TV broadcast and 
onsite filming and 
world wide web 
publication:  
£200 for world-wide 
rights for first item;  
£80-00 for each 
additional item.  
 
Filming on site only 
£180 per half day. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£15 
£5 
 
 
 
£50 
£30 
 
E-book rights will attract 
an additional £50 per 
order 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£250 
 
£100 
 
 
£200  
 
 
 
 

The proposed increases and the structure of these 
charges aim to support the local and academic 
research community and to ensure that commercial 
providers bear costs proportionate both to the time 
involved in preparing rights agreements for them 
and to the larger audiences they aim to reach. 
 
It is proposed to abolish the differential item charge 
for e-book rights and instead impose a flat rate 
charge encompassing all items to be used in a 
particular publication.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25



FEE/CHARGE CURRENT PROPOSED COMMENTS 

OUTREACH SERVICES 
 

11. Talks to / visits by external organisations and 
groups 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
12. Use of meeting room (LARC) at Staffordshire 

Record Office per four hour session. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Talks offsite 
£50-00 County/City 
£55-00 out of county 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Saturday group visits: 
£55-00 
 
(£5 extra for out of 
county groups) 
£55-00 group visit 
including tour of 
strongrooms 
£60 -00 group visit 
including tour of 
strongroom and also 
visit to conservation 
workshop 
 
£20 SCC meetings, 
adult education, local 
history and other 
societies, non-profit 
making local 
organisations or 
individuals 
 
£58 commercial 
companies 
 
 
 

 
£50-00 County/City 
£60-00 out of county 
 
 
 
 
Visits to Staffordshire 
Record Office or Stoke-
on-Trent City Archives 
 
£50 
Visits which include a 
tour of the strongrooms 
and/or conservation will 
attract the Staff 
Facilitation Fee in 
addition. Visits on 
Saturday will attract the 
Staff Facilitation Fee 
 
 
 
 
No change 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£60 

These fees were last increased in 2016 and at the 
recommendation of the JAC in 2013 include travel 
expenses for out of county talks. The out-county 
fee is increased this year to reflect increases in 
such costs.   
 
 
Visits that go behind the scenes at Staffordshire 
Record Office or which involve Conservation staff 
require additional staffing and the Staff Facilitation 
Fee is charged in addition to the basic fee. This 
better reflects the true extra cost to the service than 
the charges which were previously notified.  
 
Fees may be waived for retired / disabled groups at 
the discretion of the Archive Service.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 26



 Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Joint Archive Committee 
3 December 2018 

 
 
 

Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Archive Service: Review of Joint Agreement 
for Archive Services 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

1. That the proposed changes to the Joint Agreement for Archive Services as   

attached at Appendix 2 be approved. 
 
Report of Deputy Chief Executive and Director for Families and Communities 
(Staffordshire County Council) and Director of Housing and Community 
Services (Stoke on Trent City Council) 
 

Reasons for Recommendations 
 

Background  
 

2. The Joint Agreement for Archive Services enables Staffordshire County Council 
and Stoke-on-Trent City Council to discharge their functions with regard to archives 
through the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive Service. The Joint Archives 
Committee exercises delegated powers in respect of archive functions in the County 
and the City within an annual budget approved annually by both authorities. The 
Agreement prescribes those functions and lays down the standing orders and 
financial procedures to which the Joint Committee is subject. 
 

3. The current Joint Agreement was re-drafted in 2010 and operates under a  
nine year rolling term, maintained every three years by an automatic extension for a 
further three years, unless either authority has served notice to terminate the 
agreement.  There is provision for termination by either authority at three years’ 
notice or by mutual agreement at any time. 

 
Proposed amendments to Joint Agreement 

 
4. The management of the Joint Archive Committee budget is set out fully in Section 
8 of the Joint Agreement. The agreed revenue expenditure is apportioned annually 
between the County Council and the City Council according to the Registrar 
General’s most recently published population estimates. The Joint Committee’s 
revenue budget is made up of two budgets, the core budget and the sites and public 
services budget. The core budget relates to the costs of the professional 
management of the Archive Service, the conservation of collections and service-wide 
programmes such as the online catalogue. The public sites and services budgets 
include all the public service delivery costs of Staffordshire Record Office, Lichfield 
Record Office and Stoke-on-Trent City Archives and the cost of the Archive Service’s 
out store in Stafford. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 
5. Since the last review of the Joint Agreement the County Council and City Council 
have reduced the budgets for their archive services to deliver savings for both 
authorities. The reduction to the budgets for core services and public sites means 
the maintenance of the split based on the population estimates is becoming 
increasingly difficult to achieve. It is proposed to remove the split based on the 
populations estimates and for both authorities to set budgets according to the current 
core services and public sites. Proposed amendments are shown at section 8 of the 
draft revised agreement. 
 
6. Lichfield Record Office closed during December 2017 and it will be replaced by a 
History Access Point in St Mary’s Centre, Lichfield opening in December 2018. The 
agreement has been updated to reflect this change.  
 
7. There are further minor amendments to the agreement which reflect changes in 
job titles, staffing, and services and items included within the budget.  
 
Next steps 
 
8. Subject to approval of the committee the changes will be checked by legal 
representatives in both authorities.  
 
9. A final version will be brought to the next Joint Archive Committee in February 
2019. 
 
Appendix 1 
 
Equalities implications: 
 
No significant implications. 
 

Legal implications: 
A County Council legal representative has completed an initial check of the proposed 
revisions and confirmed they are appropriate. The same process will be carried out 
by the City Council’s legal representative. 
 

Resource and Value for money implications: 
 

The proposed changes have been done in consultation with the financial officers and 
will enable appropriate budgets to be set for the two authorities.   
 

Risk implications: 
 

There is a risk that funding will not be secured for any of the options. This will affect 
the accreditation of the Archive and Heritage Service.  
 

Climate Change implications: 
 

No significant implications. 
 
Health Impact Assessment screening: 
 

No significant implications. 

Page 28



 

Report author: 
 

Authors’ Names: Joanna Terry, Head of Archives & Heritage; John Broad 
Senior Finance Business Partner (Decision Making)  
 
 
Telephone No:  (01785) 278370 
Room No: Staffordshire Record Office 
 
List of Background Papers 
 

Papers  Contact/Directorate/ext number 
 

Appendix Two: Draft revised Joint Agreement on Archive Services 2018 
 

Page 29





 1 

 

AN AGREEMENT made [                         ] 2019 BETWEEN STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL (“The 

County Council”) and STOKE-ON-TRENT CITY COUNCIL (“the City Council”) 

together known as the “Parties” 

1. INTERPRETATION 

 

1.1 Expressions in the left hand column of the interpretation table below shall be construed in accordance with 

the right hand column. 

 

Interpretation Table 

Parties 

 

Staffordshire County Council and Stoke-on-Trent City Council 

Joint Committee The Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives 

Committee 

Joint Service Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive Service (for the 

administering areas of Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent) 

Initial Agreement the agreement made between the Parties and dated 28 March 

1997 for the provision of the joint archive service during the 

period 1 April 1997 to 31 March 2000 

Archive Service the provision of archive services for the purposes of the 

Functions pursuant to this Agreement 

Commencement Date 

 

[                     ] 2019 

Functions 

 

the functions of the Joint Committee as set out in paragraph 3.2 

Role the role of the Joint Service as set out in Appendix 1 to this 

Agreement 

Standing Orders the standing orders of the Joint Committee set out in Appendix 

2 to this Agreement 

Collecting Policy the policy determined from time to time for acquisitions to the 

archive collections of the Joint Service 

Revenue Budget the revenue budget of the Joint Committee for the Archive 

Service in any year comprising the aggregate of the Core 

Budget and Public Service Points Budget 

Capital Budgets the capital budgets of the County Council and of the City 

Council for the Archive Service in any year 

Budgets 

 

the Revenue Budget and the Capital Budgets in any year 

Core Budget that part of the Revenue Budget (including Overheads) relating 

to expenditure on Core Services 

Core Services the professional management of the Archive Service and the 

preservation and conservation of the archive collections of the 

Joint Service 

 

Page 31



 2 

 

Overheads the employee costs (including on costs) of the posts primarily 

engaged from time to time in providing the Core Services and 

the costs of training, supplies, microfilming, document repair, 

publications, acquisitions  

 

 Public Service Points Budget that part of the Revenue Budget in any year relating to 

expenditure on  Public Services 

 Non-Agreement Items archive services or other items relating to archive services 

provided or undertaken by either Party on which the 

expenditure incurred shall not be included in the Budgets 

 Non-Agreement Expenditure expenditure incurred by either Party on the provision of Non-

agreement Items 

Public Service Points the public service points specified in paragraph 4.3 for which 

the Joint Committee are responsible 

Public Services the delivery by the Joint Committee of archive services direct 

to the public at the Public Service Points and by the promotion 

of the Archive Service through Outreach Activities 

Sites the property (excluding the William Salt Library, Stafford) 

from time to time held for the purposes of the Archive Service 

Outreach Activities as defined from time to time by the Joint Committee in the 

Joint Service Access, Audience Development and Learning 

Policy 

William Salt Library the William Salt Library, Stafford administered by the County 

Council for the provision of services including archives by 

agreement with the trustees of the William Salt Library Trust. 

 

1.2 Except where the contrary intention appears, references in this Agreement to the singular shall include the 

plural and vice versa. 

 

1.3 References to sections are to the sections 1 – 15 of this Agreement and references to paragraphs are to 

paragraphs within those sections. 

 

1.4 References to “year” and “years” are to the financial year or years of the Parties commencing on 1 April in 

any year and finishing on 31 March in the following year.  The last year shall end on the date upon which 

this Agreement terminates. 

 

1.5 This Agreement shall have effect from the Commencement Date and shall continue in force in accordance 

with the provisions of section 9. 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



 3 

2. THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

2.1 The Parties, in exercise of their powers under Section 101 and 102 of the Local Government Act 1972, 

Section 13 (5A) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Sections 16 and 20 of the Local 

Government Act 2000 and all other powers enabling them in that behalf, hereby establish and participate in 

a Joint Committee to discharge their Functions with regard to Archive Services to be known as the 

Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Archives Committee. 

 

2.2 The Joint Committee shall be constituted and conduct its business in accordance with the Standing Orders. 

 

2.3 The Joint Committee shall comprise the following membership: 

 

(a) The County Council will appoint two members being County Councillors, who are members of the 

County Council’s Executive as voting members of the Joint Committee. 

 

(b) The City Council will appoint one member being a City Councillor who is, (from the date on 

which the City council began to operate executive arrangements under the Local Government Act 

2000) a member of the City Council’s Executive as a voting member of the Joint Committee.  

 

(c) The County Council may appoint two substitutes and the City Council may appoint one substitute 

respectively for the voting members or member appointed under paragraph (a) or paragraph (b) one 

(or both in respect of the County Council) may attend as a voting member when (as the case may 

be) one or both of the voting members appointed under paragraph (a) or (b) is unable to attend.  

Each such substitute must be a County or City Councillor (as the case may be) who is himself or 

herself eligible to be a voting member of the Joint Committee.  Such substitute(s), when not acting 

as substitutes, may also attend meetings of the Joint Committee in an observer capacity and may 

speak but not vote on any item of business. 

 

Page 33



 4 

(d) The County Council and the City Council may appoint an elective member not being part of its 

executive to attend meetings of the Joint Committee in an observer capacity who may speak but 

not vote on any item of business. 

 

3. FUNCTIONS OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

3.1 The Parties empower the Joint Committee, subject to the Budgets approved in accordance with Section 8, 

to exercise the Role and discharge the Functions, on their behalf, for the geographical County area of 

Staffordshire in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Acts 1972 and 1992, the Local 

Government (Records) Act 1962, the Public Records Acts 1958 and 1967, the Manorial Document Rules 

1959, the Tithe Rules 1960, the Parochial Registers and Records Measures 1978 as amended by the Church 

of England (Miscellaneous Provisions) Measure 1992 and the provisions of the Standard For Record 

Repositories 2004. 

 

3.2 The Functions of the Joint Committee shall be as follows: 

(a) to administer the Staffordshire Record Office, the Lichfield History Access Point,  Burton-upon-

Trent Family and Local History Centre) and the Stoke-on-Trent City Archives. 

 

(b) to make recommendations to the Parties on revenue and capital estimates for the Joint Committee; 

 

(c) to determine policies for and the standards of the Joint Service in accordance with the appropriate 

national and international standards for archives and any revision thereof; 

 

(d) to monitor the performance of the Joint Service by means of an annual report to the Parties and by 

any other reports as may be required or requested by the respective scrutiny processes of either the 

County Council or the City Council; 

 

(e) to determine the Collecting Policy and to receive reports about collecting; 

 

(f) to acquire other documents by loan, gift or purchase within the Collecting Policy; 

Page 34



 5 

 

(g) to promote use of primary source material and to facilitate joint development and make the best use 

of resources through co-ordinated activity; 

 

(h) to promote and develop such specialised technical and professional services as may be necessary in 

the cost effective provision of the Archive Service (including, without limitation, conservation, 

micro-filming, information technology and publications); 

 

(i) to promote the Archive Service through the Public Services; 

 

(j) subject to paragraph 5.1, to employ in the Joint Service such staff on such service conditions as the 

Joint Committee may determine as will facilitate the most efficient and effective delivery of the 

Archive Service; 

 

(k) to undertake any related activities which the Joint Committee deem to be of benefit to archives in 

the administrative areas of Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent. 

 

3.3 The Parties empower the Joint Committee to arrange the discharge of the Functions or any of them by any 

Ad Hoc Sub-Committee or officer of the Parties and Subsection 2 of Section 101 of the Local Government 

Act 1972 shall apply in relation to the Functions as it applies in relation to the functions of the Parties. 

 

4. OPERATION OF THE ARCHIVE SERVICE 

 

4.1 All archive services and items relating to the provision of archive services detailed in Appendix 3, which 

were in the past provided or undertaken by either Party outside the scope of the Initial Agreement, shall 

form an integral part of the Archive Service either in relation to the Core Services or the Public Services as 

the case may be. 

 

Page 35



 6 

4.2 Unless at any time during this Agreement the Parties agree otherwise, the William Salt Library shall not 

form part of the Archive Service.  Public access to the archive collections of the William Salt Library shall 

be through the readers’ ticket system of the Joint Service. 

 

4.3 The Public Service Points comprise:- 

 

 a) the Staffordshire County Record Office; 

 

 b) the Lichfield History Access Point; 

 

 c) the Stoke-on-Trent City Archive Service; 

 d) Burton on Trent Family and Local History Centre 

 

5. STAFFING 

 

5.1 Without prejudice to paragraph 3.2(j), the functions of the Joint Committee shall be carried out by such 

staff as are employed by each of the Parties on service conditions to be determined by the relevant 

employing Party and in accordance with the following provisions: 

 

a) any new Head of Archive Services will be appointed by the Joint Committee on behalf of the 

County Council. 

 

b) the Head of Archive Services and the City Council’s Head of Community Services (or equivalent) 

will be automatically invited to participate in the interview process for the posts of the City 

Archivist employed by the City Council  

 

c) the Head of Community Services (or equivalent) will be the line manager for the City Archivist.  

The City Archivist will also have a professional accountability to the Head of Archive Services for 

the performance and operation of the professional aspects of the Joint Service in the City of Stoke-

on-Trent. 

Page 36



 7 

 

5.2 In the event of this Agreement being terminated under section 9, then upon such termination the 

employment of any staff then employed by the Joint Committee under paragraph 3.2(j) shall transfer under 

TUPE (if applicable) or, if TUPE does not apply, shall transfer on the same service conditions (with any 

necessary changes) to whichever Party the Parties may agree. 

 

5.3 Support service for the Joint Committee shall include the provision of financial, legal, and administrative 

services and such support services to the Joint Committee shall be provided by the County Council during 

the period of this Agreement. Support services for the Archive Service, including the provision of financial 

and legal services, shall be provided by the Parties.  Property services will be provided by the County 

Council and the City Council depending on where each Site is located. Support service costs and property 

services costs shall be funded by the respective parties but shall be Non-Agreement Expenditure.  

 

5.4 Specific delegated powers for officers are set out in Appendix 4. 

 

6. SITES 

 

6.1 Subject to paragraph 6.2, the Sites held by each of the Parties in accordance with the details in Appendix 5 

shall continue to be held by that Party but shall be made available and maintained for the use of the Joint 

Committee during this Agreement.  Any related contractual obligations shall be discharged by the Joint 

Committee and any related revenue costs shared between the Parties in accordance with section 8. 

 

6.2 The Parties may agree to increase or reduce the number of Sites or to increase or reduce the area or 

capacity of any of the Sites in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

7. CONTRACTS 

 

7.1 Every contract for the execution of work or the supply of goods or services to the Archive Service and 

procedures relating thereto shall comply in all respects with the financial regulations and contract standing 

orders of whichever Party enters into the contract. 

Page 37



 8 

 

7.2 Any conditions or liabilities under any external funding contract made prior to the Commencement Date  

(including the Gateway to the Past Project and the Sutherland Papers Project) or subsequently made during 

the term of this Agreement between an external funding provider (1) the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 

Joint Archives Committee (2) the County Council (3) and the City Council (4) relating to projects in 

respect of the Archive Service shall be discharged by the Joint Committee  in accordance with this 

Agreement and, if arising after the termination of this Agreement, shall be apportioned and discharged by 

the County Council and the City Council in the proportions applicable to each of the Parties under 

paragraph 8.1 in the year of termination. 

 

8. FINANCIAL 

 

8.1  

 

8.1 The Core Budget shall not be adjusted (either increased or decreased) by either Party in any year without 

the approval of the Joint Committee.  The financial consequences of any adjustment of the Core Budget 

which is approved by the Joint Committee under this paragraph 8.1 shall be consolidated into the Revenue 

Budget in the year in which the adjustment takes effect and the cost or saving. (as the case may be). 

 

8.2 In any year either Party may undertake unilaterally, without the agreement of the other Party, development 

of the archive services provided at any Public Service Point which is located at a Site held or to be held by 

that Party in the year in question provided that the cost of the proposed development is met fully by that 

Party in that year and that the development will not result in any ongoing revenue cost implications in any 

subsequent year during this Agreement. 

 

8.3 In any year either Party may propose to make an adjustment to the funding of the Archive Services 

provided at any Public Service Point which is located at a Site held or to be held by that Party in the year in 

question. 

 

Page 38



 9 

8.4 Subject to paragraph 8.5, any proposed adjustment under paragraph 8.3 (whether involving an increase or a 

reduction in expenditure in the year in question), which would have ongoing revenue cost implications in 

any subsequent year, shall not be implemented without having been approved individually by both Parties 

before being considered by the Joint Committee.  The financial consequences of any adjustment which is 

approved by both Parties and by the Joint Committee:- 

 

(a) shall be borne solely by the Party making the adjustment in the year in which the adjustment is 

madeandshall be consolidated into the Revenue Budget in subsequent years and the cost or saving. 

(as the case may be)  

 

8.5 If in any year an adjustment proposed by either Party under paragraph 8.3 is not approved individually by 

both Parties and by the Joint Committee, the Party proposing to make the adjustment may proceed to make 

the adjustment in the year in question provided that, if it does make the adjustment, the financial 

consequences shall be borne solely by that Party and shall not be consolidated into the Revenue Budget in 

any subsequent year during this Agreement. 

 

8.6 Subject to the preceding paragraphs of this Section 8, the proposed Budgets for each year of this 

Agreement shall be prepared by the County’s Director of Finance and Resources in conjunction with the 

City Council’s Director of Central Services.  The Revenue Budget shall identify separately the Core 

Budget and Public Service Points Budget. 

 

8.7 The proposed Budgets shall be considered by the Joint Committee at the earliest practicable date in the 

year preceding the year to which the Budgets relate. 

 

8.8 Either before or after the Budgets have been approved by the Joint Committee, the Budgets will be 

presented to both the County Council and the City Council, which will both confirm, through a joint report 

of the County’s Director of Finance and Resources and of the City Council’s Director of Central Services 

to the Joint Committee before 31 March in any year, what level of funding will be available to the Joint 

Committee in the following year having regard to the proper application of the provisions of this 

Agreement.  The Joint Committee will approve the Budgets accordingly. 

Page 39



 10 

 

8.9 The revenue costs of archive services and items relating to the provision of archive services under 

paragraph 4.1 shall be included in the Revenue Budget from the Commencement Date. A list of such 

Archive Services is provided at Appendix 3, the revenue costs relating shall change year on year. 

 

8.10 The posts listed in Appendix 6 are the posts primarily engaged at the Commencement Date in providing the 

Core Services, the cost of which shall change each year. 

 

8.11 Subject to the provisions of paragraph 4.2, all expenditure incurred by the County Council in 

administering, servicing and maintaining the William Salt Library and its archive collections and in the 

delivery of archive services to the public at the William Salt Library shall be Non-Agreement Expenditure. 

 

 

8.12 The term ‘revenue costs’ shall mean the net revenue expenditure on the Joint Service in any year after 

deduction of fees and charges and other income, but excluding property services costs and support services 

costs (as referred to in paragraph 5.3) which are not controlled by the Joint Committee.  Fees and charges 

shall be made in accordance with scales to be set by the Joint Committee for each year. 

 

8.13 Any capital financing costs arising from capital developments or improvements to any Site undertaken 

from the Commencement Date shall be borne by the Party owning the Site in question.  Unless otherwise 

agreed by the Parties, any purchase of archive collection material will be financed by the Archive 

Acquisition Reserve referred to in paragraph 8.16 below to the extent that the cost of purchase is not met 

from external funding sources.  Similarly, any capital receipts will accrue to the Party owning the asset to 

which the capital receipt relates. 

 

8.14 During this Agreement the Joint Service will operate under the respective financial regulations and rules of 

whichever of the Parties incurs any expenditure.  The Budgets in each year will represent a cash limit for 

the Joint Service. 

 

Page 40



 11 

8.15 A scheme of management for the establishment of an Appropriation Reserve is set out at Appendix 7.  The 

scheme provides a facility to carry forward into the next year any underspend of the Revenue Budget but 

requires firstly that the funding of any overspend of the Revenue Budget is met in any year by transfer 

from the appropriation reserve.  If the Appropriation Reserve is insufficient to meet the overspend in any 

year, then the Joint Committee will consider any necessary adjustment in the Revenue Budget for the 

following year.   

 

8.16 A scheme of management for an Archive Acquisition Reserve is set out in Appendix 8.  This reserve may 

be increased by donations, or by transfer of funds from the Appropriation Reserve. 

 

8.17 Any payment due either from the City Council to the County Council or from the County Council to the 

City Council in any year shall be made on 1 May and 1 November in two equal instalments based upon the 

approved Budgets.  The invoice will be in official form and will meet Customs and Excise VAT 

requirements.  Payment will be due within 28 days of receipt of the invoice.  All sums payable by either 

Party to the other pursuant to this Agreement are exclusive of VAT.  Each Party shall pay any VAT 

properly chargeable on any supply made under this Agreement. 

 

8.18 The County’s Director of Finance and Resources will be responsible for keeping records of income and 

expenditure relating to the Joint Service and will produce twice yearly monitoring reports to the Joint 

Committee.  The City Council’s Director of Central Services will provide any necessary financial 

information for this purpose. 

 

8.19 The accounts of the Joint Committee will be included in the accounts of the Parties for audit purposes. 

 

9. DURATION AND TERMINATION 

 

9.1 This Agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and shall continue in force for an initial 

period of three years thereby expiring on 31 March 2022 unless and until determined by notice under 

paragraph 9.3 or by mutual consent under paragraph 9.4. 

 

Page 41



 12 

9.2  Notwithstanding paragraph 9.1, this Agreement shall extend automatically as from 1 April 2022 for a 

further period of three years and thereafter shall extend automatically every three years on each third 1 

April unless, prior to the expiration of each successive period of three years, either Party has served notice 

to terminate the Agreement under paragraph 9.3 or both Parties have agreed to its being terminated by 

mutual consent under paragraph 9.4. 

 

 9.3 Prior to 31 March 2022 or, as the case may be, prior to the expiration of each subsequent period of three 

years from that date, either Party may serve on the other Party not less than three years notice in writing to 

terminate the Agreement with effect from 31 March in the relevant year specified in the notice.  Any notice 

served by either Party under this paragraph 9.3 may be withdrawn at any time prior to the expiration of the 

notice with the consent in writing of the other Party. 

 

9.4 The Parties may agree in writing at any time during the currency of this Agreement to terminate the 

Agreement by mutual consent with effect on such date as they shall specify.  The Parties may agree to 

terminate the Agreement by mutual consent under this paragraph 9.4 whether or not notice to terminate the 

Agreement has been served previously by either Party under paragraph 9.3 

 

9.5 Following service of any notice under paragraph 9.3, or as part of any termination by mutual consent under 

paragraph 9.4, the Parties shall determine terms for the termination of this Agreement and more 

particularly in relation to the following: 

 

a) in accordance with paragraph 8.13 of this Agreement, the division of any capital receipts; 

 

b) on the basis that properties will be retained by the Party in whose geographic area they are situated, 

as to how any balances held will be divided; 

 

c) how obligations and liabilities of the Joint Committee ascertainable prior to the termination or 

subsequently arising shall be met by the Parties. 

 

Page 42



 13 

9.6 In the event of the Parties not having determined the terms for the termination of this Agreement three 

months before the termination is to take effect pursuant to this section 9 then the arbitration provisions of 

section 14 shall be invoked. 

 

10. MISCELLANEOUS 

Insurance 

 

10.1 Any necessary compensation or other essential financial payment or legal obligation to the payment or 

fulfilment of which either of the Parties or any third party may become entitled as a result of or in 

connection with the discharge of any of the Functions shall as between the Joint Committee and the 

Councils be paid or fulfilled wholly by the Joint Committee and the Joint Committee shall accordingly 

ensure that adequate insurance cover is effected and maintained in respect of any such liability. 

 

Civil Litigation 

 

10.2 The institution and defence of necessary civil litigation by the Joint Committee arising from the exercise of 

the Functions shall be undertaken in a representative capacity by the County Council. 

 

Criminal Proceedings 

 

10.3 The conduct of any criminal proceedings in the Magistrates Court or the Crown Court brought by or 

against the Joint Committee arising out of the discharge of the Functions shall be undertaken in a 

representative capacity by the Party in whose area the circumstances giving rise to the proceedings occur.  

 

11. VARIATION OF AGREEMENT 

 

11.1 This Agreement may be varied at any time upon such terms as the Parties may agree. 

 

12. NOTICES 

 

Page 43



 14 

12.1 Any notice to be served under this Agreement upon the County Council will be served at Staffordshire 

Legal Services, No. 2 Staffordshire Place, Tipping Street, Stafford ST16 2DH for the attention of the 

Director ofStrategy, Governance and Change.  Any notice to be served under this Agreement upon the City 

Council will be served at the Civic Offices, Glebe Street, Hanley, Stoke-on-Trent for the attention of the 

Head of Legal Services. 

 

13. INTERESTS OF MEMBERS IN CONTRACTS AND OTHER MATTERS 

 

13.1 a) Every member and substitute member of the Joint Committee shall at all times comply with the  

principles specified in the law including those specified by the Secretary of State under Section 49 

of the Local Government Act 2000 which are to govern their conduct. 

 

(b) Any member and substitute member of the Joint Committee who has an interest defined in the 

Members’ Code of Conduct or his or her Council shall comply with the requirements of that Code 

as regards the disclosure of that interest and as regards withdrawing from participation in 

consequence of that interest. 

 

13.2 The Secretary of the Joint Committee shall keep a record of particulars of any disclosures by members 

which shall be open during normal office hours for public inspection. 

 

14. ARBITRATION 

 

14.1 If at any time any dispute or difference shall arise between the Parties in respect of any matters arising out 

of this Agreement or the meaning or effect of this Agreement or anything herein contained or the rights or 

liabilities of any of the Parties, the same shall be referred to and settled by a single arbitrator to be 

appointed by the Parties but, if they cannot agree the appointment, to be nominated by The President of the 

Law Society for the time being. 

 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 

 

Page 44



 15 

15.1 The Parties to this Agreement shall be released from their respective obligation under the Agreement if 

national emergency war prohibitive government regulations or any other cause (except strike action) 

beyond the control of the Parties or either or them renders the performance of this Agreement impossible. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

THE ROLE OF THE JOINT SERVICE 

 

The Role of the Joint Service is: 

 

Page 45



 16 

a) to enable the County Council and the City Council to meet their obligations and discharge 

their Functions with regard to the Archive Service in accordance with the provisions of the 

Local Government Acts 1972 and 1992, the Local Government (Records) Act 1962, the 

Public Records Acts 1958 and 1967, the Manorial Documents Rules 1959, the Tithe Rules 

1960 and the Parochial Registers and Records Measure 1978, as amended by the Church 

of England (Miscellaneous Provisions) Measure 1992; 

 

b) to locate, collect, preserve archive collections relating to the administrative areas of the 

County of Staffordshire and the City of Stoke-on-Trent. 

 

c) to make such collections available for consultation and research by local authorities, public 

and private bodies and members of the public. 

 

d) to promote and encourage the use of such collections by the public through a range of 

Outreach Activities 

 

The Joint Service provided will be:- 

 

a) Public Services including (without limitation) the provision of public reading rooms/study 

areas to facilitate public consultation of original, microform and digitised documents, 

electronic access to the public to archive sources, reprographics and research services; 

 

b) the implementation of the Collecting Policy by acquiring archive collections by deposit, 

indefinite loan, gift or purchase; 

 

c) access to archives by the provision of cataloguing, indexing and archive information 

networks; 

 

Page 46



 17 

d) specialist advice on archives to owners of documents including (without limitation) the 

County Council and the City Council, the Diocese of Lichfield, other local authorities in 

the County, private and public bodies/institutions and organisations, education 

establishments and members of the public; 

 

 e) specialist storage facilities for archive collections or archival documents; 

 

 f) specialist conservation/preservation services for archive collections; 

 

g) the management of, and storage and retrieval services for, the title deeds and related 

documents of the County Council; 

 

h) promotion of the Archive Service by Outreach Activities throughout the administrative 

areas of Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent and elsewhere; 

 

i) monitoring of the whereabouts of archives relating to the County of Staffordshire and the 

City of Stoke-on-Trent, which are held by third parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

STANDING ORDERS FOR THE  

STAFFORDSHIRE AND STOKE-ON-TRENT JOINT ARCHIVES COMMITTEE 

1. Interpretation 

 

Page 47



 18 

1.1 The decision of the Chairman of the meeting as to the interpretation of any standing order or on 

any question of procedure and provided for by these standing orders shall be final.  No debate may 

ensue thereon. 

 

2. Meetings 

 

2.1 The annual meeting of the Joint Committee in each year shall be held as soon as practicable after 

the annual meetings of the two Councils and not later than 30 June. 

 

2.2 The Joint Committee shall between each annual meeting hold at least one ordinary meeting on 

such day and at such time and place as they determine provided that a meeting shall be held as 

soon as practicable after November of each year for the purpose of considering the Joint 

Committee’s budget for the following year. 

 

2.3 With the exception of the annual meeting and the budget meeting, the Clerk with the agreement of 

the Chairman and Vice Chairman may cancel any meeting of the Joint Committee if in his or her 

opinion insufficient business has arisen for consideration. 

 

2.4 A special meeting of the Joint Committee shall be convened at any time by the Clerk upon the 

instructions of the Chairman and Vice Chairman. 

 

3. Notice of Meetings 

3.1 At least five clear days before a meeting of the Joint Committee: 

 

a) notice of the time and place of the intended meeting shall be published at the offices of 

both Councils; 

 

Page 48



 19 

b) a summons to attend the meeting specifying business proposed to be transacted shall be 

sent by post to the last address given for that purpose by each member of the Joint 

Committee and to the Chief Executive of each Council. 

 

3.2 Lack of service on a member of the Joint Committee of the summons referred to in section 3.1(b) 

above shall not affect the validity of a meeting of the Joint Committee. 

 

3.3 Except in the case of business required by this standing order to be transacted at a meeting of the 

Joint Committee and other business to be brought before the meeting as a matter or urgency, of 

which the Chairman, Vice Chairman and the Clerk shall have prior notice and which the 

Chairman and Vice Chairman consider should be discussed at the meeting, no business shall be 

transacted at a meeting of the Joint Committee other than that specified in the summons relating 

thereto. 

 

4. Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman 

 

4.1 At its annual meeting the Joint Committee shall elect until the date fixed for the next following 

annual meeting a Chairman and Vice Chairman from amongst its voting members (on a rotating 

basis alternately between the two Councils) but so that the Chairman and Vice Chairman shall not 

be representatives of the same Council. 

 

4.2 Each person proposed for any office shall be duly nominated and seconded by members attending 

the meeting before his or her name is submitted to the vote of the meeting.  When there are more 

than two persons nominated for any appointment and of the votes given there is not an overall 

majority in favour of one person, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be 

struck off the list and a fresh vote shall be taken and so on until a majority of votes is given in 

favour of one person. 

 

Page 49



 20 

4.3 On a vacancy arising in the office of the Chairman or Vice Chairman for whatever reason the Joint 

Committee shall as soon as possible elect another member to hold such office until the next 

following annual meeting but so that the Chairman and Vice Chairman shall not be representatives 

of the same Council. 

 

5. Membership of the Joint Committee 

 

5.1 Each voting elected member of the Joint Committee shall be a representative of the Council by 

whom he or she shall have been appointed and shall hold office until the next annual meeting of 

the Joint Committee following his or her appointment unless he or she ceases to be a 

representative of the Council appointing him or her or resigns his or her membership of the Joint 

Committee or his or her appointment is revoked by the Council appointing him or her. 

 

5.2 Each Council may fill any casual vacancy during any year and shall advise the Clerk of the Joint 

Committee within 7 days of such appointment. 

 

 

5.3 The Joint Committee may at any time appoint a representative of the Diocese of Lichfield and up 

to a maximum of three persons representative of users of the Archive Service, depositors and of 

any body based within the administrative areas of Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent with an 

educational interest in the Archive Service, none of whom shall be an elected member or 

employee of either Council, to attend meetings of the Joint Committee in an advisory capacity 

during the consideration of items on Part 1 of the agenda.  Each such appointment shall be for 

such period not exceeding three years as the Joint Committee may determine and may be renewed 

at the discretion of the Joint Committee.  Any such appointed adviser shall be entitled to speak but 

not to vote. 

 

6. Chairman of Meeting 

Page 50



 21 

 

6.1 At each meeting of the Joint Committee the Chairman, if present, shall preside. 

 

6.2 If the Chairman is absent from a meeting of the Joint Committee the Vice Chairman if present, 

shall preside. 

 

6.3 If both the Chairman and the Vice Chairman are absent from a meeting of the Joint Committee 

such member of the Joint Committee shall be selected by the members present and shall preside 

accordingly.  

 

7. Quorum 

 

7.1 No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Joint Committee unless two voting members 

are present including one from each Council. 

 

7.2 If during any meeting of the Joint Committee the Chairman, after counting the number of 

members present, declares that there is not a quorum for the meeting then the meeting shall stand 

adjourned to a date and time fixed by the Chairman or, in the absence of a date and time being 

fixed, to the next ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee to which the consideration of any 

business not transacted shall be referred. 

 

 

 

8. Order of Business 

 

8.1 At every meeting of the Joint Committee the order of business shall be to select a person to 

preside if the Chairman or Vice Chairman are absent and thereafter shall be in accordance with the 

Page 51



 22 

order specified in the notice of the meeting except that such order may be varied either by the 

Chairman at his or her discretion or on a request agreed to by the Joint Committee. 

 

9. Minutes 

 

9.1 Minutes of the proceedings of a meeting of the Joint Committee shall be drawn up and entered 

into a book kept for the purpose and shall be signed at the next meeting of the Joint Committee by 

the person presiding thereat and any minute purporting to be so signed shall be received in 

evidence without further proof. 

 

9.2 Notwithstanding anything in any enactment or rule of law to the contrary, the minutes of the 

proceedings of meetings of the Joint Committee may be recorded on loose leaves consecutively 

numbered, the minutes of any meeting being signed and each leaf comprising those minutes being 

initialled at the same or next following meeting of the Joint Committee by the person presiding 

thereat and any minute purporting to be so signed shall be received in evidence without further 

proof. 

 

9.3 Until the contrary is proved a meeting of the Joint Committee, a minute of whose proceedings has 

been made and signed in accordance with this paragraph shall be deemed to have been duly 

convened and held and all members present at the meeting shall be deemed to have been duly 

qualified. 

 

9.4 The Chairman shall move “That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Committee held on … be 

signed as a correct record”.  If the accuracy is not questioned the Chairman shall sign the minutes. 

 

10. Discussion Affecting Persons Serving or Under the Control of the Joint Committee 

 

Page 52



 23 

10.1 If any question arises at a meeting of the Joint Committee as to the appointment, promotion, 

dismissal, salary, superannuation or conditions of service or as to the conduct of any officer 

serving or under the control of the Joint Committee, such question shall not be the subject of 

discussion until the Joint Committee has decided whether or not the power of exclusion of the 

public under Sections 100A to 100K of the Local Government Act 1971 shall be exercised. 

 

11. Voting 

 

11.1 The mode of voting at meetings of the Joint Committee shall be a show of hands. 

 

12. Interests of Members in Contracts and Other Matters 

 

12.1 (a) Every Member and substitute Member of the Joint Committee shall at all times comply  

with the principles specified in law, including those specified by the Secretary of State 

under Section 49 of the Local Government Act 2000, which are to govern their conduct. 

 

(b) Any Member and substitute Member of the Joint Committee who has an interest defined in 

the Members’ Code of Conduct or his or her Council shall comply with the requirements 

of that Code as regards the disclosure of that interest and as regards withdrawing from 

participation in consequence of that interest. 

 

12.2 The Clerk of the Joint Committee shall keep a record of particulars of any disclosures by members 

which shall be open during normal office hours for public inspection. 

 

 

13. Interests of Officers in Contracts 

 

Page 53



 24 

13.1 The Clerk shall keep a record of particulars of any notice given by an officer of the Joint 

Committee under Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 of a pecuniary interest in a 

contract which records shall be open during normal office hours for public inspection. 

 

14. Expression of Dissent 

 

14.1 No expression of dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the Joint Committee.  Any one member 

may demand that named vote be taken. 

 

15. Canvassing of and Recommendations by Members 

 

15.1 Canvassing of members of the Joint Committee directly or indirectly for any appointment under 

the control of the Joint Committee shall disqualify the candidate concerned for the appointment.  

The effect of this order should appear in every advertisement inviting applications for 

appointment. 

 

15.2 A member of the Joint Committee shall not solicit for any person any appointment under the 

control of the Joint Committee but this shall not preclude a member from giving a written 

testimonial of a candidate’s ability, experience or character for submission to the Joint Committee 

with an application for appointment. 

 

16. Relatives of Members or Officers 

 

16.1 A candidate for any appointment under the control of the Joint Committee who knows that he/she 

is related to any member or officer of the Joint Committee shall when making application disclose 

that relationship to the officer to whom the application for appointment is required to be 

submitted.  A candidate who fails to disclose such relationship will be disqualified from the 

appointment and if appointed shall be liable to dismissal without notice.  Every member or officer 

Page 54



 25 

of the Joint Committee shall disclose to the Clerk any relationship known to exist between that 

officer and any person whom he/she knows is a candidate for a post under the control of the Joint 

Committee.  The Clerk shall report to the Committee any such disclosures. 

 

16.2 For the purposes of this standing order relative means husband or wife, parent or child, 

grandparent or grandchild, brother or sister, uncle or aunt, nephew or niece or if any of these 

relationships to the married partner of the candidate. 

 

17. Disturbances at Meetings 

 

17.1 If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings of any meeting the Chairman shall warn that 

person.  If the interruption continues the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the 

meeting room. 

 

17.2 In the case of general disturbance in any part of that meeting room open to the public the 

Chairman shall order that part to be cleared. 

 

17.3 If a member of the Joint Committee in the opinion of the Chairman behaves improperly or 

offensively or deliberately obstructs business the Chairman shall warn that person.  If the member 

continues to behave improperly the Chairman or any member may move that either the member 

leave the meeting or that the meeting is adjourned for a specified period. 

 

18. Variation and Revocation of Standing Orders 

 

18.1 Any addition, variation or revocation of these standing orders shall when proposed and seconded 

stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee, provided 

that this standing order shall not apply to any review of standing orders at the annual meeting of 

Page 55



 26 

the Joint Committee.  Any addition, variation or revocation shall be referred to each of the two 

Councils for their approval. 

 

19. Suspension of Standing Orders 

 

19.1 Any standing order may be suspended for all or part of the business of a meeting of the Joint 

Committee at which suspension is moved.  Such a motion cannot be removed unless three 

members are present including one from each Council nor can such a motion be moved if the 

effect of suspending standing orders would be in conflict with the terms of any agreement entered 

into by the Councils. 

 

20. Rescission of Previous Resolutions 

 

20.1 No motion to rescind any resolution passed within the preceding six months nor any motion to the 

same effect as any motion negative within the preceding six months shall be in order unless the 

notice of such motion shall have been given and specified in the summons and the notice shall 

bear, in addition to the name of the member who proposed the motion, the name of three 

members.  When any such motion has been disposed of by the Joint Committee it shall not be 

open to any member to propose a similar motion within a further period of six months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Page 56



 27 

 

ARCHIVE SERVICES AND ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED IN THE 

JOINT ARCHIVE COMMITTEE’S REVENUE BUDGET 

     

                                       

Archive Services and Items       

Staffordshire County Council 
Computer Costs       

Office Costs 

Staffing and Training Costs         

Annual Burton Office Staff Cost Reimbursement 

Fees & Charges Income 

General Sales Income 

Miscellaneous Income (i.e. Donations)         

        

        

 

Stoke-on-Trent City Council 
Computer and office costs      

Archive staffing costs       

Training        

                  

 

             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 4 

 

Page 57



 28 

DELEGATION OF POWERS TO OFFICERS 

 

1. Subject to compliance with the Standing Orders and to any regulations and resolutions of or 

applicable to the Joint Committee, officers are hereby authorised to act on behalf of the Joint 

Committee as regards any of the Functions.  The officers who are from time to time the holders of 

the posts specified below are authorised to act on behalf of the Joint Committee as regards the 

matters hereby delegated to them. 

 

2. In the Functions a reference to any Act of Parliament shall be deemed to include a reference to 

any subsequent Act or Acts which may amend or replace the same and to any statutory regulations 

order or directions made thereafter. 

 

3. The exercise of any delegated authority shall be in general accordance with established Joint 

Committee policy and approved Budgets. 

 

ARCHIVIST TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

4. The Head of Archive Service is authorised:- 

 

(a) to represent the Joint Committee at relevant Committees, conferences and meetings of 

national, regional and local bodies in accordance with the interests of the Joint Committee. 

 

(b) to act in consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman on behalf of the Joint 

Committee in cases of urgency, such action to be reported to the first appropriate meeting 

of the Joint Committee. 

 

 

 

CLERK TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

Page 58



 29 

 

5. The Clerk to the Joint Committee is authorised:- 

 

(a) to sign on behalf of the Joint Committee any document necessary to give effect to any 

resolution of the Joint Committee. 

 

(b) to sign any document which is a necessary step in any legal procedure or proceedings. 

 

TREASURER TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

6. The Treasurer to the Joint Committee is authorised to produce the Budgets estimates and the 

accounts of the Joint Committee. 

 

PROPERTY SERVICES OFFICERS TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

7. The Property Services Officers to the Joint Committee are authorised to produce reports about the 

maintenance and repair requirements for the Sites. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 

Page 59



 30 

SITES 

 

County Council Held Sites 

 

 The Staffordshire County Record Office 

 

 Lichfield History Access Point 

 

 The Burton-upon-Trent Family and Local History Centre  

 

  Beaconside Out-Storage Premises 

 

City Council Held Sites 

 

 City Central Library Archive Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 6 

 

Page 60



 31 

CORE BUDGET 

 

Employees (incl. NI & Super) 

Staffordshire County Council 

Head of Archive Service  

Archivist – Collections Management 

Senior Archivist Collections Development 

Senior Conservator 

Conservator 

 

Stoke City Council 

City Archivist 

 

Employee Costs     
 

Training          
 

Supplies and Services 
          

Document repair         

Publications             

       

 

       

 

      

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 7 

Page 61



 32 

 

APPROPRIATION RESERVE MANAGEMENT SCHEME 

 

1. Purpose of Reserve 

 

1.1 The purpose of the appropriation reserve is to hold accumulated surpluses of the Joint Committee 

which can be made available, subject to the approval of the Joint Committee to:- 

 

 (a) Meet any deficits arising on the Revenue Budget 

 

 (b) Set aside sums for future capital investment purposes 

 

 (c) Finance any other specified use approved by the Joint Committee. 

 

2. Operation of the Reserve 

 

2.1 The appropriation reserve shall be under the control of the Joint Committee.  The Joint Committee 

may give approval to the use of the reserve for the purposes of the Functions. 

 

3. Investment of Reserve Balance 

 

3.1 The Treasurer to the Joint Committee is authorised to invest balances from time to time either 

internally or externally in an approved investment as appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

4. Contribution to the Reserve 

Page 62



 33 

 

4.1 Where the Archive Service underspends the Revenue Budget in any year the balance may be 

transferred to the Appropriation Reserve. 

 

5. Payments to be met from the Reserve 

 

5.1 No direct payments are to be made from the Archive Appropriations Reserve. 

 

6. Management of the Scheme 

 

6.1 The Treasurer to the Joint Committee is authorised to make the accounting entries necessary to 

achieve the purposes of the Archive Acquisitions Reserve in accordance with proper accounting 

practices. 

 

7. Amendment to the Scheme 

 

7.1 The Joint Committee may request the Parties to amend the scheme at any time.  Any such 

amendment would have to be approved by both Parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 8 

Page 63



 34 

 

ARCHIVE ACQUISITION RESERVE 

MANAGEMENT SCHEME 
 

1. Purpose of Reserve 

 

1.1 The purpose of the Archive Acquisitions Reserve is to provide a source of funds available to 

finance archive acquisitions. 

 

2. Operation of the Reserve 

 

2.1 The Archive Acquisitions Reserve shall be under the control of the Joint Committee.  The Joint 

Committee may give approval to finance an acquisition from the reserve provided the proposed 

expenditure relates to the procurement of archive material.  Approval to any proposal will allow 

the approved amount to be transferred from the reserve to the appropriate heading in the Revenue 

Budget. 

 

3. Investment of Reserve Balance 

 

3.1 The Treasurer to the Joint Committee is authorised to invest balances from time to time either 

internally or externally in an approved investment as appropriate. 

 

4. Contributions to the Reserve 

 

4.1 Contributions may be made to the Archive Acquisitions Reserve from time to time from the 

Revenue Budget subject to specific approval from the Joint Committee and subject to compliance 

with legislation.  Any underspend of the annual acquisitions budget will be credited to the Archive 

Acquisitions Reserve at the end of each year. 

 

Page 64



 35 

4.2 Donations from other bodies/persons may be placed in the Archive Acquisitions Reserve upon the 

understanding that they are to be used for the purchase of archive material at some future date.  

The Joint Committee shall approve the treatment of all such donations. 

 

5. Payments to be met from the Reserve 

 

5.1 No direct payments are to be made from the Archive Acquisitions Reserve. 

 

6. Management of the Scheme 

 

6.1 The Treasurer to the Joint Committee is authorised to make the accounting entries necessary to 

achieve the purposes of the Archive Acquisitions Reserve in accordance with proper accounting 

practices. 

 

7. Amendment to the Scheme 

 

7.1 The Joint Committee may request the Parties to amend the scheme at any time.  Any such 

amendment would have to be approved by both Parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS of which the Parties have caused their respective Corporate and 

Page 65



 36 

Common Seals to be affixed to this Agreement as a Deed the day and year first before 

written:- 

 

THE CORPORATE SEAL of the 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOKE-ON-TRENT 

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:- 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

 

THE COMMON SEAL of the 

STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:- 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

 

Page 66



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 9
Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972





Document is Restricted

Page 75

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2018
	4 Predicted Outturn 2018/19
	031218 Item No. 4 - Appendix 2 (revised)
	031218 Item No. 4 - Appendix 3 (revised)

	5 Review of Fees and Charges
	031218 Item No. 5 - Appendix

	6 Review of Joint Agreement
	031218 Item No 6 - Appendix

	9 Staffordshire History Centre Project
	031218 Item No. 9 - Appendix


